
Date Published:12 March 2020     

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Friday 20 March 2020 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

ORGANISATION ITEMS

1  APOLOGIES Simon Harper

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 14) Simon Harper

3  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS Simon Harper

4  WORK PLAN 

Forthcoming Executive Decision List
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=
0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisi
ons&V=1 

Council Strategy
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2083042/council-strategy-2019-
3.pdf

Currently on the work plan

Consider Information Management item for May 2020 meeting

Cllr Shaun 
Parsons

SCRUTINY ITEMS

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=1
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=1
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=1
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2083042/council-strategy-2019-3.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2083042/council-strategy-2019-3.pdf


    

5  STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE REPORT - 3RD QUARTER 2019/20 
(Pages 15 - 50)

It would be helpful if members would email in detailed questions arising 
from the performance reports in advance of the meeting. This will enable 
officers to have prepared responses and also better support the 
committee’s debate on these matters

Rob Ayliffe

6  FINANCE MONITORING REPORT 2019/20 (Pages 51 - 62) Paul Blacker

7  PERFORMANCE REPORT - CORPORATE SERVICES (Pages 63 - 66) Steve Mawson

8  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY MEMBER CHAMPION PROPOSAL (Pages 
67 - 68)

Cllr Shaun 
Parsons

Membership –  Cllr Robert Bird, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Kate Haigh, 
Cllr Joe Harris (Vice-Chair), Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Stephen Hirst,  Cllr Shaun Parsons (Chair), 
Cllr Brian Robinson, Cllr Rachel Smith, Cllr Ray Theodoulou and Cllr Lesley Williams MBE

Added Members - 

Co-Opted Member - 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Acting Monitoring
Officer (Rob Ayliffe Tel: 01452 328506 e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior
to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Officer
:01452 324204/fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
Thursday 9 January 2020 at the Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:

Cllr Carole Allaway Martin
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Rachel Smith
Cllr Shaun Parsons (Chair)
Cllr Stephen Hirst

Cllr Kate Haigh
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Iain Dobie
Cllr Jeremy Hilton
Cllr Ray Theodoulou
Cllr Lesley Williams

Cllr John Cordwell (For Item 2)
Cllr Graham Morgan (For Item 2)
Cllr Steve Robinson (For Item 2)
Cllr Eva Ward (For Item 2)
Cllr Ben Evans (For Item 2)
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson (From Item 2 onwards)

Substitutes:

In attendance: Pete Bungard, Chief Executive (Item 1 & 6)
Rob Ayliffe, Monitoring Officer and Head of Planning, Performance & 
Change (Item 1)
Paul Blacker, Director of Finance 
Mandy Quayle, Director of People (Item 5)
Colin Chick, Director of Economy, Environment and Infrastructure 
(Item 2)
Wayne Bowcock, Chief Fire Officer (Item 3)
Mark Branton, Deputy Adult Social Care (Item 3)
Sarah Scott, Director Public Health (Item 3)
Chris Spencer, Director Children’s Services (Item 4)
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Adviser

Cabinet Members: Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Leader of Council (Item 1 & 6)
Cllr Richard Boyles, Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet Member 
for Children’s Safeguarding and Early Years (Item 4)
Cllr Vernon Smith, Highways and Flood (Item 2)
Cllr Kathy Williams, Adult Social Care Delivery (Item 3)
Cllr Nigel Moor, Environment and Planning (Item 2)
Cllr Lynden Stowe, Finance and Change (Item 5)
Cllr Dave Norman, Public Protection, Parking and Libraries (Item 3)
Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Economy, Education and Skills (Item 2 & 4)
Cllr Tim Harman, Public Health and Communities (Item 3)

Apologies:
Cllr Joe Harris

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



1. Council Strategy

1.1 Members met with Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Leader of the Council, and Pete 
Bungard, Chief Executive to discuss the Council Strategy and receive an 
introduction to the budget scrutiny day. Throughout the day the committee 
would meet with the Cabinet Members and Directors under the remit of each 
Scrutiny Committee and discuss their areas of the budget. Members on each 
of the Committees were welcome to attend for their relevant sessions or to 
stay for the whole day.

1.2 Members were advised to consider how effectively the proposed budget 
responded to:

 The changing needs of Gloucestershire residents and communities
 The priorities and ambitions set out within the Council Strategy – 

Looking to the Future
 Any legislative or other changes in national policy or guidance

1.3 The Committee understood that the proposed budget included in the 
December Cabinet Report included cost reductions of £9.588 million, cost 
increases of £40.792 million with an overall budget of £468.183 million.

The Budget issued for consultation was based on 1.99% Council Tax increase 
and 2% National Social Care Levy.

Band D Council Tax of £1,345.32 (a £51.62 p.a. increase)

The Budget Consultation period ran from 20th December 2019 to 17th January 
2020.

1.4 The Chief Executive emphasised that this was a draft budget and could still 
change based on any announcements from central government regarding 
funding changes. In addition, the responses of the public engagement and 
scrutiny’s comments would be taken into account. Members were informed 
that the number of responses to the draft budget was approaching 400 and 
there was still a week to go. It was suggested that this budget was more 
straightforward to present in that it included close to £41million of growth with 
only £9.588 million in savings. This differed to previous budgets that had been 
drawn up during a period of austerity.

1.5 The Chief Executive drew members attention to the overspend in the current 
budget for Vulnerable Children. This was in part due to an increase in the 
average unit cost of looking after a young person. This reflected a ‘broken’ 
market and a UK wide increase in demand for these services. Even those 
councils with the best run children’s services were facing similar issues. All 
other areas of the Council’s budget were within 1% of their allocated budget.

Page 2



1.6 Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Leader of the Council, stated that the Council had 
received a good financial settlement from central government which provided 
for extra resources for adult social care and children. He suggested that 
lobbying through the LGA had delivered this additional funding. Members 
noted the budget increases in the draft MTFS.

1.7 In response to questions, it was explained that the budget did not contain 
greater contingency for any further deterioration in the children’s external 
market place. It was stated that the introduction of Trevone House and the 
additional placements that would bring would help to reduce costs in this area 
and deliver better outcomes. The Chief Executive stated that practice in 
Children’s Services was improving and this would lead to less ‘distressed’ 
emergency purchasing being required in a crisis situation.  One member 
expressed concern about the impact on the Council’s reserves if there was a 
continued lack of control over the Children’s budget. Another member 
suggested that the Council reserves should be increased to match the 
increase in the revenue budget, noting that reserves had dipped below 4% of 
that budget.

1.8 It was noted that district collection fund figures could make a slight difference 
to the overall budget to be considered in February but there was confidence 
that the forecasting would not be far off the actual figures.

1.9 Opposition members were reminded that officers were available to cost up 
any potential budget amendments or suggestions in complete confidence.

1.10 Some members felt that the current format of the budget papers did not 
provide sufficient clarity over the figures or an opportunity to compare 
previous year’s budgets to identify how resources had changed in specific 
areas. 

1.11 In response to a question, it was suggested that schools would likely welcome 
the additional investment particularly in light of historical underfunding in 
Gloucestershire.

1.12 One member questioned how the budget was being used to support the 
Council’s commitment to tackling climate change and support the Climate 
Change Strategy. It was explained that this was an area to discuss with 
Cabinet Members throughout the day.

2. Environment and Economic Growth 

Environment and Planning

2.1 Cllr Nigel Moor, Cabinet Member Environment and Planning, introduced the 
session by urging members to consider the Climate Change Strategy which 
included a range of actions to reduce carbon emissions.

2.2 Members noted the strategic intentions outlined within the draft MTFS. This 
included, during 2020/21 a number of strategically important long-term 

Page 3



planning visions need to be developed or implemented including the Joint 
Core Strategy (Review), Local Plan refreshes, Local Transport Plan, including 
new rail investment strategy, Joint Municipal Waste Strategy and the Local 
Industrial Strategy. 

2.3 In response to a question it was confirmed that there would be a review of 
household recycling centres in order to make them more accessible and 
safer. It was stated that this was not a cost cutting review and would include 
consideration of selling recycled items on the sites.

2.4 One member asked what the budget would be to support public transport. The 
Cabinet Member stated that this would be around £10 million to support 
commissioned, subsidised and community transport. New initiatives were 
being considered such as an ‘uber-like’ service in rural areas that would 
provide a more bespoke service. It was requested that a breakdown be 
provided to members on this budget along with details of what funding was 
provided by central government. The member sought reassurance that 
services would not be lost in the next 12 months and clarification was 
requested on whether the budget included an increase or decrease in this 
area.
ACTION Colin Chick

2.5 There was a discussion on how the budget was looking to change behaviours 
and services in order to meet the commitments around tackling climate 
change. Cllr Nigel Moor discussed the review of the local transport plan and 
the ambition to bring about modal change. In response to a specific question it 
was stated that there was no change to third party recycling credits. The 
Climate Change Strategy was committed to an 80% reduction in carbon 
emissions by 2030; some members queried how funding committed to big 
capital projects that appeared to increase vehicle traffic met that ambition. In  
response, it was explained that this was about playing ‘catch up’ and taking it 
step by step. A £1million pot was available so that work could be progressed 
in collaboration with districts. The initial focus was on ‘ getting our own house 
in order’ and show real leadership in carbon reduction. The Local Transport 
Plan would bring a range of initiatives. 

2.6 One member stated that in examining the waste budget he could not see the 
savings being generated from the operation at Javelin Park and asked for a 
breakdown of the budget including the revenue implications of the Residual 
Waste Project over the next 12 months. The member was reminded that this 
was about delivering savings over a 25 year period.
ACTION Colin Chick

Economy and Skills

2.7 Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cabinet Member for Economy, Education and Skills, 
outlined that Gloucestershire had a prosperous and resilient economy. The 
focus was on increasing demand for services and jobs as well as creating 
opportunities for increased investment. This could only be achieved through 
collaboration and partnership with other agencies such as planning authorities 

Page 4



and GFirst. This needed to be achieved while always taking into consideration 
the Climate Change Strategy.

2.8 One member asked what planning had been carried out in terms of any 
negative impacts of Brexit. In response it was stated that this was something 
that officers were looking at in order to mitigate risks, and it was suggested 
that increased certainty in this area was helpful.

2.9 The Committee discussed the provision of broadband and the partnership 
with BT. Broadband was an essential utility but there were challenges in 
delivering in rural areas. Fastershire was in its tenth year and had been a big 
success helping Gloucestershire to become one of the best connected 
counties in the country. There were still pockets of hard to reach areas and 
this was the cause of much frustration. The next phase of the project was to 
focus on those ‘hard to reach’ areas through more flexible means such as 
match funding and grant schemes. 

2.10 One member emphasised the importance of town centres as important parts 
of communities and important areas for business which in turn would help with 
business rates. The Council worked closely with district and borough councils 
to forge closer ties and help Gloucestershire become more successful. 

2.11 In response to a member’s question, it was explained that work was being 
carried out to make people’s homes carbon neutral and that this would lead to 
a requirement for new skills which in term could generate more jobs. It was 
important to have apprenticeships and pathways to allow those skills and jobs 
to be developed.

Highways and Flood

2.12 Cllr Vernon Smith, Cabinet Member for Highways and Flood, outlined the 
commissioning intentions for highways and emphasised the importance of a 
positive relationship with partners, contractors and communities. He referred 
to climate change and the increase in incidents of flooding and the impact on 
new housing that might be close to vulnerable land. 

2.13 In relation to the Highways and Public Rights of Way network, the Council 
was approaching year 3 of the £150million highways improvement pledge. In 
the first year £26million of resurfacing had been carried out which was double 
the level of the previous year. By the end of the second year it was predicted 
that £31million would have been spent on resurfacing schemes and in year 3 
the Council was hoping to deliver £49.8million worth of resurfacing work. 

2.14 The Council would continue to deliver on major transport projects, cycling 
infrastructure and LED street lighting schemes. 

2.15 Members noted that Highways Local was in the budget at £10,000 per 
member. The Committee noted that at full Council in previous years this had 
been increased through budget amendments. Some members explained that 
£10,000 was not enough and urged the Cabinet to consider increasing it.

Page 5



2.16 There was discussion around cycling with one member expressing scepticism 
about the take up of cycling as a replacement for car travel, particularly in 
more rural isolated areas. Other members spoke of the importance of cycling 
and welcomed the work that was being carried out to improve the network. 
Cllr Vernon Smith stated that in relation to the Climate Change Strategy he 
felt that cycling was one area that the Council could be proud of what it would 
deliver. In response to a question on the amount spent on footways and 
cycleways as an amount and percentage, it was explained that it was difficult 
to identify an amount spent on cycling routes because every highways 
scheme incorporated a proportion of work to improve footways and cycle-
ways. The £49.8million for resurfacing schemes would include a large 
proportion of this work. 

2.17 Some members queried what highways improvement works would be carried 
out in the coming year. In response it was explained that detailed charts were 
available from the Cabinet Member.

2.18 It was confirmed that the Lengthsmen Scheme was being delivered by the 
Council and was reflected in the draft budget.

3. Adult Social Care and Communities 

Libraries and Parking

3.1 Cllr Dave Norman, Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking and 
Libraries, outlined the commissioning intentions in this area, explaining that 
the review of on street charging would be carried out alongside investment in 
new parking zones and a new parking enforcement contract. With regards to 
libraries there would be an expansion of digital services and there would be 
consultation on an updated library strategy as this had not been looked at 
since 2012.

3.2 In response to a question, it was explained that the consultation document for 
libraries was still being drafted but this would be about enhancing the service. 
One member asked if the £10,000 figure was still available for community 
libraries and whether this would be improved. The Cabinet Member confirmed 
that there was no intention to reduce this figure. Savings within the budget 
related to the mobile library no longer being operational along with some staff 
that were leaving. There would be a staffing review in response.

3.3 One member queried the savings within the Registration Service. Cllr Norman 
said that he would have to come back to the member with the details but 
believed that this was in relation to targeting higher income in order to support 
the service.
ACTION Colin Chick

3.4 In response to a member’s question on residents parking it was explained that 
there would be no increases in charges above inflation.

Page 6



Public Protection

3.5 Cllr Dave Norman explained that the issues within Gloucestershire Fire and 
Rescue Service had been well documented and had been ongoing for around 
two years. The draft budget looked to increase the budget for the service in 
relation to inflation and pensions schemes but also to change the staffing 
structure of the service to incorporate seventeen returning posts. Historically 
the service had seen reductions in its budget and had been ‘cut too lean’. The 
new Chief Fire Officer had reviewed the service and, alongside the reports 
from the HMICFRS visits, had moved quickly to make changes. The budget 
included funding to support the Liberal Democrat motion at Council to support 
young people to access the facilities at Skillzone. 

3.6 Members welcomed the increase in the budget for the service and 
emphasised the importance of supporting staff.

3.7 One member, while supporting the increase in budget for the Fire and Rescue 
Service, expressed concern regarding the Trading Standards budget. Cllr 
Norman explained that if there was an opportunity to enhance the service 
then he would look at options for that, but it was important to understand the 
links between that team and their shared remit with other areas of the 
Council’s work. In addition, Trading Standards teams across regions 
supported each other and shared expertise. The Chief Fire Officer reiterated 
that the initial focus had been on the Fire and Rescue Service and that the 
Trading Standards team was set up to focus on its statutory duties.

3.8 The Committee sought assurances that the increase in budget for the Fire 
and Rescue Service would allow the service to address the concerns outlined 
by HMICFRS. In response it was explained that this would take time but the 
additional staff would help the service to make progress in those areas 
highlighted during the inspections. 

Adult Social Care

3.9 The Committee acknowledged the recent loss of Cllr Roger Wilson who had 
been Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Commissioning.

3.10 Cllr Kathy Williams, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care Delivery, outlined 
the commissioning intentions. She explained that in the current year the 
service was forecast to remain within its budget which was credit to the hard 
work of staff. She suggested that having social worker teams in-house had 
helped to focus resources as well as reducing the reliance on institutional 
residential care. There was a good relationship with health and care 
colleagues and it was important to provide creative solutions to manage 
demand. 

3.11 One member expressed concern around what support was in place for 
families that took on a carer role for their family members and spouses. It was 
suggested that this was an area that was unseen. The Cabinet Member 
acknowledged that this was a shared concern and that some family members 
were not informing the Council of the role they were taking on. 

Page 7



3.12 There was a discussion around the success of the Adult Single Programme. 
Some members questioned whether there would be a later impact on the 
budget of those individuals that had not received extensive support earlier 
who requiring intervention at a later stage. In response it was explained that a 
lot of work had been carried out around ‘Your Circle’ and carers brochures 
which helped communicate to individuals the support available. Officers 
explained that there was now a smaller savings target attached to reducing 
external care placements because it was recognised that there were less 
opportunities to reduce costs. Joining up data with health colleagues was 
important in allowing demand to be mapped and better understand 
individual’s pathways. In addition, the use of technology was important in 
providing the required support. 

3.13 One member noted that, while the overall budget for this area was forecast to 
be balanced, there were indications that the full savings targets would not be 
achieved in the current year. It was explained that over the three year period 
there was confidence that the savings targets would be met and delays were 
due to new initiatives being rolled out at a slower speed to ensure that they 
could be better integrated and embedded for the long term.

3.14 It was noted that there had been good integration between health and social 
care and public health. One member asked a question regarding the chair of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board as well as whether there would be a review of 
changes to the scrutiny structure in order to reflect the integration in this area. 
In response it was explained that the new Cabinet Member for Adult Social 
Care Commissioning could potentially chair the Health and Wellbeing Board 
and that a review of the scrutiny arrangements was scheduled for later in the 
year. 

3.15 One member sought to understand how much ‘cost savings’ could be 
attributed to the introduction of the ‘three tier conversation’. In response it was 
stated that there had been a £10 million overspend in the Adults budget at the 
time of its introduction, this had been addressed and an additional £8 million 
had been saved in the previous year as well as another £8 million forecast in 
the current year.

3.16 It was stated that dementia care was a priority area for the Cabinet Member.

3.17 The Committee commented that there was interconnectivity between budgets, 
with the example given of the introduction of cycle lanes potentially helping to 
reduce social care costs at a later stage. It was stated that some Care Act 
funding had been used to support transport schemes in the past and that 
there were further lessons like that to be learned. Some members expressed 
concern that the Council was working in silos.  The Thriving Communities 
grants were available to help kick start initiatives. County Councillors had a 
role in terms of alerting the Council to worthwhile initiatives and making best 
use of that local knowledge.  

Public Health

Page 8



3.18 Cllr Tim Harman, Cabinet Member for Public Health and Communities, 
explained that the Public Health budget relied on a ring fenced grant. This 
was the first year of real investment in Public Health for a number of years. He 
said that the re-commissioning process had been successful in helping to 
change the way the Council worked. The detail was contained within the 
budget papers.

3.19 The £473,000 of additional investment would help to support the provision of 
public health services such as sexual health and drug and alcohol services.  

3.20 In relation to a member’s concern regarding late diagnosis of HIV, it was 
outlined that there was investment around contraception. Work was being 
carried out with colleagues to understand what was behind the late diagnosis 
figures and identify where in each individual’s journey this could have been 
spotted earlier. 

3.21 There was no specific work stream related to gambling. Following the Council 
motion, the drug and alcohol service and healthy lifestyles service continue to 
raise awareness about the risks of gambling.

3.22 One member asked for further details on the savings outlined in the budget 
due to reductions in community based support. It was explained that  the 
contract provided flexibility to take into account of variations in demand. The 
reductions reflected the amount of unused capacity within the providers 
commissioned to provide community and accommodation based support. 

3.23 An extra £200,000 was in the budget for the public health  nursing service. 
This would fund additional personnel. In response to concerns around 
national recruitment issues in nursing, it was explained that there was 
confidence in the Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust to 
fill those posts.

3.24  It was preferable for individuals to not smoke at all but it was accepted that 
vaping was less harmful than tobacco smoking. The data suggested that there 
were less young people taking up smoking but that there was still a cohort of 
adults who did smoke. 

3.25 Work was being carried out to understand what services were required to help 
support people who were self-harming.

3.26 Members noted the county-wide oral health promotion strategy and plan.

4. Children and Families 

Children’s Safeguarding and Early Years

4.1 Cllr Richard Boyles, Cabinet Member for Children’s Safeguarding and Early 
Years, outlined the commissioning intentions for 2020/21. He stated that the 
service was projected to overspend in light of pressure on the budget primarily 

Page 9



due to external placements that had risen from an average of £50,000 per 
child to £99,000. The use of agency staff also continued to add to those 
budget pressures. The draft budget included additional investment of £14.94 
million to support vulnerable children, allow for additional social workers, 
fostering allowances and other staff costs. 

4.2 In order to mitigate the risks and challenges associated with high cost 
placements, Trevone House had been developed. This would ensure 
appropriate placements for children in care at a lower cost and allow them to 
remain in county. 

4.3 Some members questioned what provision was being put in place for Early 
Years prevention work, particularly for children in the first 1001 days. It was 
confirmed that it was important to provide intervention at the earliest stage 
when it was at its lower level and this included intervention work pre-birth.  
Members noted the increases within the budget of £917,000 for early years-
improving outcomes for children, as well as £65,000 for additional capacity. 
This in conjunction with a joint project with Swindon represented a big 
proportional increase in spending in early years.

4.4 One member asked how the transition period for young people between the 
ages of 18-25 was managed and how that was reflected in the budget. The 
Care Leavers Strategy outlined a list of all the support being provided to care 
leavers including council tax relief and access to community health and fitness 
centres. This was an evolving document. A Joint Transition Strategy was also 
being developed with Adult Services to better identify young people at an 
earlier stage to help them through the transition into other services.

4.5 With regards to Education Health and Care Plans (EHCP), it was explained 
that once a decision was made to initiate an EHCP the team were hitting their 
targets in terms of timeliness. Members suggested that there were delays 
earlier in the process. It was explained that potentially this centred around the 
need for an Educational Psychologist report and that the budget included an 
extra post so that should help improve the service.

4.6 It was clarified that Trevone House would have 18 beds available in addition 
to ones held for use by the Police and NHS. Rooms would need to be kept 
free to allow for emergency placements so there was no plan to run at full 
capacity. The budget assumption was that there would be an average of 12 
individuals there in year one. 

4.7 Members expressed concern regarding the escalation in the Children’s 
budget over the years and the potential impact on other areas of the Council’s 
budget and reserves. It was explained that the budget was being constantly 
monitored and assessed. The amount in the draft budget equated to similar 
levels as other councils and it was suggested that there had been some 
catching up to do. It was felt that this was the right amount to support our 
young people. There was a focus on looking to reduce high cost placements 
and make sure the support was right. It was stated that the number of children 
in care in Gloucestershire was only slightly above the national average (by 2.3 
per 10,000). The Council was still on an improvement journey and practice 

Page 10



was still not always ‘good’; there was a link between good practice and cost 
effectiveness. As practice improved, pressures should reduce and the budget 
should come back into control. 

4.8 One member requested what the placement costs would be at Trevone 
House. This information would be provided.
ACTION Chris Spencer

4.9 Another member emphasised the importance of considering all of the 
Council’s assets when assessing properties that could allow for in-house 
provision for young people. Members were urged to look at the Sufficiency 
Strategy which set out key elements of what would be developed locally to 
meet the needs of the cohort.

4.10 Members were informed that the highest cost placement was £28,000 per 
week. This particular cost was shared with the health colleagues as it was a 
placement they had commissioned and was for a young person with some 
very specific needs. This was a short term placement as the young person 
transitioned into adult services. One member suggested that consideration 
should be given to establishing more specialist residential facilities in 
Gloucestershire with the cost and benefits potentially shared with 
neighbouring counties. 

4.11 The number of social workers had been increased to circa 400 while reducing 
agency staff. In some areas agency teams had needed to be employed to 
meet the demand.  There had been over recruitment of social workers in order 
to reduce the number of agency workers from 188 to 133. It was anticipated 
that in six months time, through ‘growing our own’ social workers, the agency 
worker numbers would be below 100. 

4.12 One member asked in the event that Ofsted rated the service inadequate or 
requiring improvement, would additional funding be required which was not 
already included in the draft budget? It was stated that it would take time to 
make the improvement needed to take the service to a ‘good’ rating, with work 
underway to stabilise and develop the workforce. If the service was rated 
‘inadequate’ then a Commissioner could be appointed to review the whole 
service and would make a decision on how to take that forward, including 
budget requirements. Work was underway to support the service so that this 
was not necessary. 

Education

4.13 Cllr Patrick Molyneux emphasised the importance of education within his 
portfolio and outlined how the Council worked with partners including schools 
through the Schools’ Forum. The budget was detailed within the papers for 
members’ consideration. He explained how the development of skills through 
schools and apprenticeships was vital to provide the best opportunities.

4.14 One member queried the cost reduction of £250,000 identified as ‘reduce 
capacity for intervention and support for maintained schools’. A written 
response would be provided.

Page 11



ACTION Chris Spencer

4.15 Another member queried the reduction in home to school transport budget 
and how that might impact young peoples’ access to education. In response it 
was explained that this was monitored closely and that it was important to find 
efficiencies in a much pressurised budget. 

4.16 It was noted that there would be a redesign of alternative provision. This 
would include the configuration of the provision and assessing the capacity 
required. 

5. Corporate Resources (Core Council)

5.1 Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cabinet Member for Finance and Change, outlined the 
importance of providing the accommodation and facilities necessary to ensure 
good quality services. Part of that included the consideration of the Council’s 
commitment around addressing climate change. 

5.2 Some members queried the increase in expenditure for the Council’s ICT 
systems. It was explained that the current systems were not at the level they 
needed to be so the investment was to improve that in light of cyber crime 
threats and to take advantage of digitisation of services. 

5.3 With regards to the disposal of assets, one member suggested that more 
could be explored to increase income generation. A breakdown of income 
from assets would be provided.
ACTION Paul Blacker

5.4 There was some discussion around the continuation of services previously 
used by maintained schools that had now become academies. Team leaders 
and managers of traded services had met to consider how best to sell those 
services back to schools. 

5.5 In response to a question, it was explained that where services overspent but 
the overall budget was balanced then this would be absorbed within the 
Council’s whole budget. Where individual services overspent by a significant 
amount then potentially reserves could be used or other options considered. 

5.6 There was a specific question regarding a technical finance adjustment in 
relation to the Energy from Waste Project which related to the way it was 
funded.

5.7 The budget included the potential for capital receipts to be used within the 
revenue budget for transformation purposes, if there was a requirement to do 
so. This was the flexibility that had been introduced by the Government and 
there were no plans for Gloucestershire County Council to take this action. 

Page 12



6. Summary

6.1 At the conclusion of the day, the Committee provided feedback to the Leader 
of Council and Chief Executive. Members outlined a number of recurring 
themes and areas of concern that they wished to emphasise in addition to the 
points raised throughout the day.

 Members expressed their concern over the pressure on the Vulnerable 
Children’s budget and, while welcoming the additional investment, expressed 
caution that this budget needed to be closely monitored.

 Members commented on the importance of the level of general reserves, 
noting that it was now at less than 4% of the revenue budget. It was 
recognised that the Section 151 Officer had signed off the draft budget 
including the level of reserves. Some members emphasised that the reserves 
provided an important contingency in relation to any loss of control of the 
Children’s budget.

 Some members asked that consideration be given to presenting the budget 
information in a more easily accessible way.

 The Committee highlighted the way in which Cabinet Members had 
considered the Council’s commitment to responding to climate change 
throughout the day’s discussion. Members welcomed the introduction of a 
Climate Change Strategy. Some members felt that the commitment should be 
more explicit within the budget and reflected in the commissioning intentions.

 Some members felt that the £10,000 per member for highways local was 
disappointing and they would like to see the figure increased.

 The Committee outlined the importance of transport and how it had links to a 
wider range of areas such as schools, employment and adult social care. 
Some members highlighted the importance of support for public transport.

 One member commented that in some areas of the budget, savings were 
attributed to a review of a particular service or staffing structure, but it was 
unclear how those reviews would save the Council money. It was felt that 
greater detail was needed to understand how savings would be achieved. The 
example of libraries was given. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview of Corporate Performance 

Quarter 3 

2019/20 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

20th March 2020 

Presented by Rob Ayliffe 

 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 5



Corporate Dashboard Indicators 
  Adult Social Care 

● 1) Delayed Transfers of Care from hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop. 

● 2) % of people who don't need long term care after reablement 

 3) Permanent admissions aged 65+ to residential and nursing care per 100,000 pop.  

  Children Social Care 

p 4) % of Children's Social Care re-referrals within 12 months 

p 5) % of children becoming subject to a protection plan for a 2nd and subsequent time 

p 6) % of children fostered with the in-house foster service 

p 7) % of children in care for more than 2.5 yrs in the same placement for at least 2 yrs 

  Economy, Skills and Growth 

 8) No. of pupils permanently excluded (All pupils) 

  Public Health 

 9) % of pregnant smokers achieving a 4 week quit 

● 10) % of UPP infants who receive a new birth visit by 30 days old 

● 11) % of UPP infants who receive a 12 month visit by 15 months 

p 12) Suicide rate per 100K population 

  Public Protection, Libraries and Parking 

 13) Number of accidental dwelling fires 

  Finance and Change 

p 14) % official information request responses within time limit 

● 15) Uncommitted general reserves as a % of the Revenue budget 

p 16) % of Council Savings Portfolio achieved 

 17) Forecast Revenue Budget Outturn Variance (£000) 

p 18) Days lost to sickness per FTE (excl schools) 

● 19) Employee Engagement Index 

P
age 16



Overview of performance at the end of Quarter 3 

3 4 3 

7 

1 
4 

2 

3 
3 

2 

1 

1 4 

2 

7 

4 

3 
2 5 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Finance  &
Change

Adult Social
Care

Public Health
&

Communities

Children &
Young People

Economy,
Skills &
Growth

Highways &
Flood

Environment
& Planning

Public
Protection,
Libraries &

Parking

Behind Target On Target Ahead of Target

P
age 17



Timeliness of Initial Visits to Children 

71.4% 
77.6% 

86.5% 
80.3% 

70.7% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20

Actual Target

P
age 18



Timeliness of Single Assessments 

79.1% 
77.1% 76.7% 79.2% 

76.4% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20

Actual Target

P
age 19



Childrens Services Re-referrals within 12 months 

27.6% 
23.4% 

29.1% 31.0% 28.4% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20

Actual Target

P
age 20



Placement Stability 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Se
p

-1
8

O
ct

-1
8

N
o

v-
1

8

D
ec

-1
8

Ja
n

-1
9

Fe
b

-1
9

M
ar

-1
9

A
p

r-
1

9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

Ju
l-

1
9

A
u

g-
1

9

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
ec

-1
9

3 or more placements within 12 months - all periods of care
Target - 3 or more placements within 12 months - all periods of care
More than 2.5 Years in care and in the Same Placement for 2 years
Target - More than 2.5 Years in care and in the Same Placement for 2 years

P
age 21



ASC Balance of Care at the end of Quarter 3 2019/20 vs 

Adult Single Programme Trajectories 

2869 
2778 2759 2811 2765 2764 2761 2718 

2822 

695 679 668 677 667 666 675 676 690 

1376 1371 1382 1370 1374 1378 1374 1373 1366 

2876 
2684 

699 652 

1374 
1274 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

2018/19
Outturn

Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20

OP Actual PD Actual LD Actual OP Target PD Target LD Target

P
age 22



Adult Safeguarding Demand and Conversion 2019/20 

490 
533 552 

632 

517 

224 
45.7% 

260 
48.8% 

242 
43.8% 

231 
36.5% 172 

33.3% 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20

Demand 

Concerns S42 Enquiries

P
age 23



Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework – Satisfaction 

and Quality of Life 

19.6 

79.7%  

7.4 

67.4%  

19.1 

77.5% 

(2016/17) 
7.4 

63.5% 

18.1 

74.5% 

7 

62.9% 

0

20

40

60

80

100

Social Care Reported
Quality of Life (max 24

points)

Social Care Users who
have control of their daily

lives

Carer Reported Quality of
Life (max 12 points)

Overall Satisfaction of
people who use ASC

Services with their care
and support

2018/19 2017/18 Statistical Neighbours 2018/19

P
age 24



Percentage of All Customers  Who Achieve a Significant Risk Factor 

Improvement and Percentage of Customers Who Achieve 5% Weight Loss 

75 % 

50% 

0

20

40

60

80

Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 (

%
) 

 % of all customers who achieve a significant risk factor improvement
 % of customers attending weight management who lost 5% or more of their initial weight
Risk Factor Improvement Target
Weight Loss Target

P
age 25



Safe and Well Visits 

6033 

8058 

1626 

3044 

4395 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20

Actual (YtD) Target

P
age 26



10
14
16
17
19
21

1

P
age 27



2

P
age 28



3

P
age 29



4

P
age 30



5

P
age 31



6

P
age 32



7

P
age 33



8

P
age 34



9

P
age 35



10

P
age 36



11

P
age 37



12

P
age 38



13

P
age 39



14

P
age 40



15

P
age 41



8

3

5

16

P
age 42



17

P
age 43



18

P
age 44



19

P
age 45



20

P
age 46



21

P
age 47



22

P
age 48



23

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Financial Monitoring Report 2019/20
Purpose of Report:  To provide an update on the County Council's Revenue & Capital 

outturn expenditure for 2019/20.

Officer:                      Paul Blacker, Director of Finance (01452) 3258999
Paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Revenue Expenditure 2019/20

A. Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 2019/20

1. The current forecast of the year end revenue position against the revenue budget of 
£429.661 million, based on actual expenditure at the end of December 2019 (Period 
9) is a balanced position. 

2. Details of the forecast year end position, analysed by service area is provided in the 
table below and the narrative that follows.

Directorate Breakdown for Cabinet Report - Position as at the end of December 2019

Variance

%

£000 £000 £000 % £000 £000

Adults 149,032 149,032 0 0.0% 0 0 

Prevention & Wellbeing 32,618 32,605 -13 0.0% -8 -5 

Children & Families 113,569 126,903 13,334 11.7% 13,362 -28 

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure 69,973 70,313 340 0.5% 478 -138 

GFRS and Regulatory Services 20,305 20,460 155 0.8% 136 19 

Corporate Resources 32,717 31,465 -1,252 -3.8% -520 -732 

Corporate Resources Recharges -32,717 -32,717 0 0.0% 0 0 

Total for Services 385,497 398,061 12,564 3.3% 13,448 -884 

Technical & Countywide 44,164 37,004 -7,160 -16.21% -6,860 -300 

Total 429,661 435,065 5,404 1.26% 6,588 -1,184 

Review of Reserves and In-Year 
Efficiencies 0 -5,404 -5,404 -6,588 1,184 

Revised Total 429,661 429,661 0 0.00% 0 0 

Forecast 
Variance 

Previously 
reported 

Service Area
2019/20 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn 
Position

Change in 
variance 

Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


3. Any year end overspends that occurs will need to be funded from reserves. 
Currently General Reserves are £18.520 million or 4.3% of the net revenue 
budget. The financial impact of anticipated future pressures have been built into 
the 2020/21 revenue budget which was approved by Council on 12th February 
2020.

Adult Social Care

4. Adult Social Care is forecasting an overspend of £0.976 million.  This forecast 
position includes £2.530 million Additional Social Care "Winter Pressures" 
funding allocation and £2.049 million of Additional Social Care Grant. 

5. Adult Social Care reserves currently stand at £6.416 million in total which 
includes the Vulnerable Adults Reserve at £2.654 million and the balance is 
specifically set aside for the backdated element of new Ordinary Residence 
cases and additional commitments relating to the National Living Wage and the 
Care Act.  The forecast overspend position is therefore covered by the 
Vulnerable Adults Reserve.

6. There are a number of significant risks that are ongoing which mainly relate to 
the Adult Single Programme (ASP) with MTFS savings targets of £10.498 
million.  Currently the forecast assumes 87% of the ASP is achievable.   

7. MTFS savings targets for all client groups are integrated under the Adults Single 
Programme (ASP) and for Older People (OP), Physical Disabilities (PD) and 
Learning Disabilities (LD) External Care budgets the impact on operational 
budgets and performance is managed by the Head of Social Care, working with 
Commissioning and Support Service colleagues.

8. LD External Care is projecting a £0.397 million underspend.  The LD underspend 
assumes delivery of the majority (99%) of the 2019/20 savings targets, although 
there are risks around some of these.  This position includes £1.469 million of 
funding that is being used on a one-off basis ahead of expected cases/decisions 
being made which will create permanent commitments included in the MTFS.

9. OP and PD External Care is projecting a £3.749 million overspend. The 
overspend is split across individual service budgets with OP showing as £2.791 
million and PD £0.958 million. The OP/PD overspend assumes 79% delivery of 
2019/20 savings targets, £3.669 million is included within the forecast with a risk 
of not achieving £1 million savings. This forecast now includes a provision for 
bad debts over 18 months, with the remainder of the overspend mainly relating 
to the unachievable savings, increased care needs for existing cases and 
voids/other additional costs relating to homes run by a major provider.

Page 52



10.The Mental Health position of £1.837 million overspend is as calculated by the 
Gloucestershire Health and Care NHST (formally 2Gether NHSFT) Finance 
Team, net of unallocated MTFS growth and savings held by the Lead 
Commissioner.  The budget total includes 2019/20 MTFS funding for fee 
increases and growth.  

11.The Community Equipment Service (CES) Pooled Budget is reported online.  
The current reported underlying shortfall of £1.2 million is being covered by the 
Disabled Facilities Grant.  If this shortfall exceeds the current agreed amount of 
£2 million it will require further approval.     

12.Other Services comprise of all staffing budgets for Adult Social Care, as well as 
a number of specific commissioned contracts. The forecast position for these 
services nets to a £2.803 million underspend including significant variances:

a. £0.75 million significant overspends: £0.75 million MTFS Prevention 
Unallocated which includes reablement saving allocation not yet 
addressed/confirmed (see comments below).

b. £2.618 million significant underspends: £0.694 million for the OP/PD 
Reablement Service managed by Gloucestershire Health and Care 
NHST (formally Gloucestershire Care Services) due to vacancies 
(see above); £1.217 million OP/PD Integrated Social Care 
Management (ISCM) due largely to vacancies 

13.Other Services (Unallocated) are reported as £1.41 million underspend, primarily 
due to £0.779 million of unused provision. 

Prevention and Wellbeing 

14.Services within this area include Public Health, Supporting People and a number 
of smaller budgets covering the prevention hub team and grants.

15.Public Health is reporting a balanced position. Services are funded by a ring-
fenced grant, which if unspent is required to be carried forward in a specific 
reserve.

Children & Families

16.The current forecast for the year end revenue position as at January 2020 for 
non-DSG funded services is an over-spend of £13.334 million (11.74% of 
budget) and there has been a very small reduction in the over-spend since the 
previous month. The over-spend is due to higher than expected number of 
external placements and the cost of agency social work staff covering vacancies. 

Page 53



To help control the impact of the over-spend, an ongoing review of expenditure 
in Children’s Services has been put in place.
 

17.At the end of December 2019 children in care numbers were 737 compared to 
669 at the end of May 2018. These numbers are not disproportionate to national 
comparisons with Gloucestershire’s per 10,000 children (Jan 20, 58.4) below the 
national average (18/19, 65) and are mid-table for our statistical neighbours 
(18/19, range of 33 to 71). This activity does continue to cause significant 
budgetary pressures on children’s services and in particular against the external 
placement and safeguarding staff budgets resulting in the over-spend. 

18.The current forecast over-spend against the external placement budget is £8.275 
million (38% above budget). The over-spend is due to a higher number of 
external placements than anticipated which includes four secure placements. 
There are also a significantly higher numbers of parent and baby placements (13 
in total). The current forecast average unit cost of a placement is £99,000 per 
annum, (residential/supported living average unit cost of £153,300). There are 
currently 336 external placements, of which 90 are residential and 71 supported 
living placements. 

19.The review of all high cost placements is continuing on a regular basis as part of 
the wider improvement work ensuring decisions around placement change and 
permanence are executed in a timely child centred manner. This will continue to 
reduce the cost of external placements where appropriate including reducing unit 
costs.  Improving social care practice to divert children from care at an earlier 
point and achieve permanence at the earliest opportunity will reduce numbers of 
children in care costs in the longer term. 

20.Against safeguarding staffing budgets there is a forecast overspend of £2.99 
million (19.2% above budget). The significant over-spend is due to the use of 
agency staff covering for staff vacancies, providing additional capacity to improve 
social work practice or where caseloads remain high. Changes have been made 
to improve processes for recruitment, put in place more effective advertising, as 
well as the launch of the social work academy to support the training and 
development of social workers and to improve retention. Turnover of staff has 
reduced to between 11 and 13% over the last few months and at the end of 
December there were 133 agency workers in post compared to over 180 at times 
in 2018/19. As the newly qualified staff who have been appointed over the last 
few months gain experience, the number of agency staff is expected to reduce 
by the end of March.  

21.A higher level of activity is also causing an over-spend of £0.874 million in 
section 17 and discretionary payments for foster carers. A resource panel is now 
in place to review and agree all significant payments and ensure consistency 

Page 54



across teams and signpost to other services. Costs avoided since June total 
£0.272 million.

22. In addition to this, Young People’s Support are forecasting a £0.746 million over-
spend due to a number of complex cases and the additional cost of agency staff 
covering vacancies.  The latter will reduce as permanent staff are recruited. 

23.Home to school transport is reporting an over-spend of £0.324 million due to the 
cost and number of short term routes. We are aware of a potential problem with 
the cost of letting contracts for HtS Transport, which could have a sizable impact 
of between £0.6m and £0.8m.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position

24.Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funded services are forecast to be over-spent 
by £9.367 million in 2019/20, which includes the deficit carry forward of £2.884 
million in the high needs block. As reported last year, the cost pressures are in 
the High Needs block, with a forecast in-year over-spend for the block in 2019/20 
of £6.976 million. The over-spends are against Special School places (£0.639 
million), Independent Special Schools (£1.92 million), top ups to support 
Education, Health and Care plans (EHCP) (£3.076 million), with significant 
overspends against colleges and special schools as well as a deficit in-year 
budget of £1.192 million.  These are all caused by increases to activity, many of 
which have been unanticipated and above forecast trends, but reflect the 
national picture. 

25.The High Needs Strategy approved by Cabinet in January 2019 includes eight 
core activities to address the continuing cost pressures. Working with schools 
and the School Forum, these activities include focusing on a new approach to 
exclusions and improvement of the graduated pathway and EHCP process – 
resulting in an 18% reduction in exclusions during 2018/19 academic year. 
Forecast models of expenditure and activity trends are in place and the 
assumptions used are challenged on a monthly basis to ensure robust 
forecasting; however, the continued high level of referrals has resulted in 
contingencies being increased this month to reflect the trend.  The Specialist 
Commissioning Team are also continuing to work to reduce the cost of 
placements in independent schools where appropriate. 

26.The budget pressures that Gloucestershire is facing reflect the national picture 
with significant deficits in DSG high needs being held in many Local Authorities. 
In December the DFE announced the allocations for the high needs block for 
2020/21 with Gloucestershire’s allocation increasing by £6.534 million which 
does not cover our current in-year cost pressure and gives no allowance for 
growth. At their January meeting, the School Forum approved £0.823 million of 
unallocated Schools Block funding (after allowing for the cost of all formula 
factors) to be used to offset high needs costs in 20/21 but this will not cover 

Page 55



future growth predictions. Therefore the implementation of the High Needs 
Strategy will be essential to ensure the budget is balanced in future years.   

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure  

27.Economy, Environment and Infrastructure are currently reporting a forecast of 
£0.340 million overspend (0.7% of total budget). 

28.Waste are forecasting a net overspend of £0.514 million in total which is mostly 
made up from £0.398 million overspend against recycling credit payments. 

Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service & Regulatory Services

29.Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service is forecasting an overspend of £0.155 
million which is 0.8% of budget. This is mainly due to unfunded superannuation 
increases on fire pension schemes.

Corporate Resources

30.Corporate Resources are forecasting an underspend of £1.252 million. This is 
due to a higher than forecast level of vacancies and project slippage in ICT, BSC 
and HR, offset by cost pressures from increased child protection cases and 
staffing costs in Legal Services and increased staff car parking costs.  
 

31.The forecast position includes the following proposed contribution to capital 
programme:

a. £0.060 million from Information Management for the RAFTS 
system replacement (Records Centre database)

b. £0.200 million from the AMPS trading catering budget to School 
Kitchen Improvements capital scheme

c. £0.023 million from the Corporate Capital Maintenance revenue 
budget to the Trevone House capital scheme.

Technical and Countywide

32.The forecast outturn position for Technical and Countywide budgets is a £7.160 
million underspend (16.21% of budget). The main areas of variance are 
highlighted in the paragraphs below.

33.Positive interest rate credits on cash balances totalling £3.588 million, reflecting 
better diversification of investments and longer term deposits.

Page 56



34.When the 2019/20 Budget was agreed in February 2019 a number of government 
funding streams had not been finalised due to the timings of announcements.  
These funding streams have now been confirmed and have resulted in slightly 
more central funding than originally estimated.  In total, £2.780 million more will be 
received from s31 grants as a result of changes that central government have 
made to business rates, known as Business Rates Autumn Statement Grant for 
2019/20.  These changes to funding are managed within the Technical and 
Countywide budgets for the Council. 

B. Review of  Revenue Reserves and In Year Efficiencies

35.This initial review of reserves resulted in the identification of £6.151 million. The 
improved outturn forecast means that £0.747 million of the transfer from the 
Rates Retention Reserve to balance the budget is not now required in this year, 
but has been retained in the reserve to assist cope with the volatile position on 
Business Rates. Meaning that the amount identified from this review is now 
£5.404 million. 

C. Delivery of Savings Programme 

36. At the end of Quarter 3, we are reporting £11.578 million delivered against a 
2019/20 target of £19.051 million. This represents 60.8% of the annual target 
achieved (see summary table).

37. A total of £14.943 million is forecast to be delivered by the end of 19/20 budget 
year, which would represent 78.4% of the annual target. The most significant 
elements at risk are £1.36 million in the Adults Single Programme, and the 
continuing pressure on external placements preventing savings being made in 
Children and Families (see below).

38. Additionally, there was an outstanding saving of £2.363 million yet to be 
achieved from previous years’ targets. The most significant element of the 
shortfall relates to the ongoing Public Health grant reduction, and the shortfall 
will be addressed through the growth bid within the 20/21 budget.

Page 57



Programme/Project
19/20 

savings 
target

Achieved 
to date

Forecast 
19/20 (incl 
achieved)

At Risk in 
19/20 Notes

Rollovers (MTC2 and 18/19) £,000 £,000 £,000
Children & Families (MTC2) 150 0 0 150 Now expected to be delivered in 20/21.
Children & Families & Public 
Health (MTC2) 1,437 0 92 1,345

Now expected to be addressed by the 
growth in budget for 20/21.

Adults Mental Health 
(previously under Supporting 
People MTC2) 435 0 0 435

Associated budget & savings have been 
transferred to Adults Mental Health.

Education (18/19) 46 46 46 0
Supporting People (18/19) 218 19 19 199 Now expected to be delivered in 20/21.
Waste (18/19) 77 77 77 0

Total Rollovers 2,363 142 234 2,129

Current programme year (19/20)

Education 550 358 458 92

Delayed by unpredictability of delivery, 
but plans in place to cover in-year budget 
position.

Adults Single Programme 10,498 6,995 9,132 1,366

Currently forecasting a shortfall, but this 
will be managed within overall budget 
position and recovered in 20/21

Public Health 641 0 641 0

Supporting People 399 137 137 262

Savings rely on reprocurement in 20/21, 
shortfall will be covered in year by 
underspends elsewhere.

Parking 487 0 487 0
Libraries 50 50 50 0

Waste 293 105 105 188

Plans to recover shortfall in 20/21 now in 
place. 19/20 budget position will be 
balanced by underspends elsewhere.

Support services 397 397 397 0
Commercial approach 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
Strategy & Challenge 70 70 70 0
Corporate & Technical 2,466 2,466 2,466 0

Staff Travel 500 0 0 500

Plans are still being formed, but the 
saving has yet to be attached to 
identified budgets.

Children & Families 1,700 0 0 1,700 Unachieved

Total Current Year 19,051 11,578 14,943 4,108
Total Rollovers + Current 21,414 11,720 15,177 6,237

Savings Programme monitoring report - Q3 2019/20 

Page 58



D. Capital Expenditure

Current Spend 2019/20

39.The capital budget for 2019/20 is £110.326 million, an increase of £0.490 million 
since last reported to Cabinet due to additional approval granted at January 2020 
Cabinet. Actual spend against the capital programme as at the end of December 
2019 (period 9) is £55.934 million.  

Budget and Forecast Outturn Position 2019/20

40.The forecast outturn position for 2019/20 is £106.373 million, against the budget 
of £110.326 million, giving forecast in-year slippage of £3.953 million. 

41.Details of the budgets and forecast year end position, and any significant 
variances, are provided in the table below and the narrative that follows. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2019/20

Service Area

Reprofiled 
Budget 
2019/20

Current 
Year 

Spend 
2019/20

% Current 
Year 

Spend 
against 

Reprofiled 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn 
2019/20

Forecast 
Year-end 
Variance

£000 £000 % £000 £000
Capital Receipts Works Before Sale 0 0 0 0

Adults 7,637 3,363 44 7,660 23

Children & Families 22,261 15,286 69 23,083 822

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure 
Highways 57,967 30,161 52 55,639 -2,328
Strategic Infrastructure 2,143 92 4 2,109 -34
Waste Disposal 830 518 62 659 -171
Libraries 296 87 30 244 -52

Fire and Rescue Service 1,281 165 13 1,137 -144

Corporate Resources
AMPS 9,851 3,221 33 7,836 -2,015
ICT projects 6,586 2,324 35 6,552 -34
Business Service Centre 531 10 2 531 0
Archives & Information Management 759 671 88 739 -20
Customer 184 36 20 184 0

Total 110,326 55,934 51 106,373 -3,953

Children & Families

42.Children & Families schemes are forecast to spend £23.083 million in 2019/20 
against a budget of £22.261 million, giving a forecast in-year overspend of 
£0.822 million. This is due to faster than anticipated progress on the Trevone 
House project, offset by slippage on various other projects. 

Page 59



Highways

43.The Highways Capital Programme is forecasting slippage of £2.328 million.  This 
is due to delays in finalising the land deals for Gloucester South West Bypass 
(Llanthony Road) before the end of the financial year and delays in the developer 
completing important links within his site at Hunts Grove which is preventing the 
introduction of the traffic signals at the Cross Keys Roundabout. 

Corporate Resources

44.AMPS schemes are forecast to spend £7.836 million in 2019/20 against a budget 
of £9.851 million, giving a forecast in-year underspend of £2.015 million.  This 
relates to the delays in the Quayside Health Hub.

45.There are no other significant capital variances being forecast at Period 9. 

Changes to the Capital Programme in 2019/20 and future years

Corporate Resources

46. It is proposed that Cabinet supports a budget increase of £0.060 million in the 
Customer Services capital budget for the new RAFTS system replacement 
(Records Centre database) scheme, funded by a revenue budget contribution 
from Information Management.

Children and Families

47. It is proposed that Cabinet support an increase of £0.274 million in the Children 
& Families capital budget, as summarised below:

 School kitchen improvements – £0.200 million revenue contribution from 
the AMPS trading catering revenue budget for kitchen improvements at 
various schools.

 Trevone House – £0.023 million revenue contribution from the Corporate 
Capital Maintenance revenue budget for a new access control system.

 Farmors School – £0.051 million s106 developer contribution from a 
housing development at London Road, Fairford towards various works to 
increase capacity at the school.

Highways

48. It is proposed that Cabinet support a net increase of £0.053 million in the 
Highways capital budget as summarised below:

 £0.005 million Stow Town contribution towards Adlestrop Bridge Weight 
Limit

 £0.007 million Newent Town contribution towards TROs
 £0.021 million developer contribution towards Draycott PROW Works.
 £0.035 million developer contribution towards Arle Court P&R.

Page 60



 -£0.015 million developer contribution a Bourton-on-the-Water Bus Shelter, 
to be reallocated or returned to the developer.

Overall

49.As a result of the above changes, the overall capital programme will increase by 
£0.387 million.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Finance Performance and Risk Meeting  

Performance Report Quarter 3 2019/20  

Corporate Resources 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overall Performance  

At the end of Quarter 3, 70% of publicly reported performance indicators for Corporate Resources 
were on or ahead of target. This is a slight improvement from Quarter 2.  

Human Resources  

Overall sickness levels for Quarter 3 are 2.34 days lost per fte which exceeds the target of 1.8. 
This is the highest level of overall sickness since March 2018.  Nationally, the LGA report that 
sickness levels are increasing within the economy as a whole and comparator figures for 2018/19, 
when available, are expected to show a rise similar to that evident for GCC. 

 The Council has previously set a uniform sickness target for the organisation which has often 
been exceeded. In order to make targets more operationally realistic, whilst still requiring 
improvement, it is intended to agree sickness targets at individual directorate level for 2020/21. 

 Long Term absence has continued to rise marginally but steadily for the last three quarters to 
1.22 days per fte from 1.06 days per fte at the end of Quarter 1 and is above the target of 0.90 
days per fte. Reasons for long term sickness could be put into context once the Workforce 
Diversity Report is available.  

The levels of absence due to stress had been stable, but above target, since June 2018 however 
Quarter 3 shows an increase from 0.68 to 0.75 per fte.  

33% 

33% 

30% 

25% 

30% 

67% 

67% 

40% 

63% 

50% 

30% 

13% 

20% 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Q3 2018/19

Q4 2018/19

Q1 2019/20

Q2 2019/20

Q3 2019/20

Corporate Resources 
Percentage of Public Indicators Behind, On or Ahead of Target  

  

Behind Target On Target Ahead of Target

 

 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



Overall staff turnover has remained the same from the previous quarter at 10.8% (from 10.9%) 

and this stability is also reflected in the turnover for adult social workers remaining at 10.4% (from 

10.7%) and children’s social workers at 12.5% (from 12.2%) 

The Employee Engagement Index has been compiled from the 2019 staff survey.  The index is 
used to focus improvements and is compared year on year. The results show an increase in 
employee engagement from the previous year from 93.3% to 94.4%. The number of staff 
members completing the 7 key questions that comprise the Index increased by just over 20% in 
2019 from the previous year.  

Finance  

The Council budget outturn forecast is back on track and is expected to have a nil variance for the 

year. Corporate Resources is showing an underspend of £1.252m for Quarter 3.  

The percentage of Council Savings Portfolio achieved is below target but shows a slight 
improvement from the end of Q2. Where delivery of savings is delayed, these will be carried 
forward into next year's plans.  Where they are no longer achievable (for example, in the case of 
Children's Services) provision is being made to cover the gap within the draft budget. 

ICT  

The number of priority 1 incidents has reduced in Quarter 3 (5) from Quarter 2 (8), but is still 
above the target of 3. The Council continues to work with the outsourced ICT managed service 
provider to address a number of areas of poor performance.  Also major business transformation 
projects are being facilitated alongside business as usual operations.   

Unfortunately, some of these targeted service improvements have had an adverse impact upon 
the voice and data network and business productivity.  All system and infrastructure changes are 
thoroughly scrutinised via the weekly change advisory board, however, the nature of technology is 
that risks will always exist and the complexities of our ageing network sometimes lead to 
unscheduled outages.  ICT works with, and communicates with, business leaders to select the 
least inconvenient time to apply network wide changes but inevitably outages will occur.  

AMPS  

AMPS achieved £1.872m in capital receipts in Quarter 3.  Capital receipts achieved to date for 
2019/20 totals £2.894m. AMPS are expecting to achieve £12.2m by end of March 2020 and are 
forecast that the overall savings target of £33m will be achieved by March 2021. 

Governance  

There were no reports issued by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman of 
complaints of maladministration and injustice upheld in the quarter. However one complaint was 
upheld by the LGSCO against the Council in relation to a failure to deal with a planning complaint 
appropriately and within timescale in the quarter.  The ombudsman was satisfied that the Council 
has taken appropriate action to remedy the situation.  

Whilst FOI numbers have plateaued the number of requests under the Data Protection Act has 
continued to increase.  These often involve large files and complex family situations; all relevant 
information needs to be fully assessed before any information is released. 

75% of closed Freedom of Information requests, 270 of 358, and 66% of Subject Access 
Requests, 55 of 83, were provided within the legal time limit. Factors, which have contributed to 
the fall in performance, have been identified and temporary resources are in place to help meet 
future targets. Work continues to improve performance with the highest risk business areas. 

Page 64



 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

20 March 2020

Equality and Diversity Member Champions

1 Introduction

At the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 29 November 
2019, members met with the Leader of Council to discuss equality and 
diversity at the Council. The committee agreed to draw up a proposal for the 
establishment of Equality and Diversity Member Champions that could meet 
periodically with the Leader of Council.

2 Background

The Equality Act replaced previous Acts such as the Disability Discrimination 
Act, Race Relations Act and Sex Discrimination Act. The Public Sector 
Equality Duty (PSED) comes under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and 
came into force in April 2011. The PSED is intended to ensure that public 
authorities embed equality considerations into its day to day work.

The PSED consists of a general duty on public authorities and specific duties. 
The specific duties are designed to help public authorities meet their general 
duty by publishing information on equality objectives.

A public authority, in the execution of its functions [eg. decision making, policy 
development, delivery of its services] must have due regard to the need to:

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010.

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and people who do not share it.

 Foster good relations between those who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not share it.

The protected characteristics referred to above are:

Age 
Disability 
Sex 
Race (including gypsy and traveller) 
Religion or belief
Gender reassignment 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



Sexual orientation
Pregnancy and maternity 
Marriage and civil partnership (only in respect of eliminating unlawful 
discrimination)

Assessing the impact of the Council’s policies and decision making on people 
or groups with a protected characteristics is an important part of complying 
with the general duty. 

The general duty does not specify how public authorities should undertake 
impact assessments but good practice suggests that assessments should be 
started early in the development of a policy or decision and that a written 
record is kept to demonstrate compliance.  

The Council has developed a Due Regard template to help officers evidence 
and record how due regard to the three aims of the general duty has been 
given in its policy development and decision making.

3 Proposal 

Each political group will be asked to nominate an Equality and Diversity 
Champion.  These champions will then meet with the Leader of Council twice 
a year to discuss equality and diversity issues within the Council. 

The champions will not receive an allowance, this is a voluntary role.

The approach will be reviewed following the Elections in May 2021

4 Role of Member Champions

 Be a visible champion within the Council for equality and diversity issues
 Review and provide oversight of equality and diversity policies
 Member Champions will feed back to their groups to ensure all Members 

are informed. 
 To be a point of contact within political groups for equality and diversity 

issues that arise through members’ case work and day-to-day activities.

Page 68


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Strategic Performance Report - 3rd quarter 2019/20
	COSC Quarter 03 2019-20 Performance Scorecard

	6 Finance Monitoring Report 2019/20
	7 Performance Report - Corporate Services
	8 Equality and diversity member champion proposal



